
CABINET
AGENDA

Page 1 of 2

WEDNESDAY 17 JANUARY 2018 AT 6.00 PM

The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time 
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Membership

Councillor Williams (Leader)
Councillor Griffiths (Deputy Leader)
Councillor Elliot

Councillor Harden
Councillor Marshall
Councillor G Sutton

For further information, please contact jim.doyle@dacorum.gov.uk.

AGENDA

1. MINUTES  

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2017 will be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Cabinet for approval.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To receive any declarations of interest

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a personal interest in a matter who 
attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered -

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent

and, if the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest, or a personal interest 
which is also prejudicial

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2

(ii)  may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter (and must withdraw 
to the public seating area) unless they have been granted a dispensation.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests, or is not the subject of a pending 
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal and prejudicial interests are defined in Part 2 
of the Code of Conduct for Members

[If a member is in any doubt as to whether they have an interest which should be 
declared they should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the start of the 
meeting] 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

An opportunity for members of the public to make statements and ask questions in 
accordance with the rules as to Public Participation.

5. REFERRALS TO CABINET  

To consider any referrals to Cabinet.

6. CABINET FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 3 - 4)

7. CONSTRUCTION OF THE MULTI-STOREY CAR PARK (MSCP) BERKHAMSTED - 
AWARD OF CONTRACT  (Pages 5 - 10)

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

To consider passing a resolution in the following terms:

That, under s.100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A Part 1 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 the public be excluded during the items in Part 2 of the Agenda for this 
meeting, because it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, that, if members of the public were present during those items, there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information relating to the financial and 
business affairs of the Council and third party companies/organisations.

Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Part 1, paragraph 3.



 
09 January 2018 

 

 CABINET FORWARD PLAN  
 

 DATE 

MATTERS FOR 
CONSIDERATION 

 
Decision 
Making 
Process 

Reports to 
Monitoring 
Officer/S.15

1 Officer 

CONTACT DETAILS 
BACKGROUND 
INFORMATION 

1.  30/01/18 Update of 
Discretionary Rate 
Relief Policy 
 
 
 

 11/01/18 James Deane, Corporate 
Director Finance and Operations 
01442 228278 
James.deane@dacorum.gov.uk 
Chris Baker, Group Manager – 
(Revenues, Benefits and Fraud) 
Chris.baker@dacorum.gov.uk 
 

To consider 
adjustments to the 
existing 
discretionary rate 
relief policy 

2.  30/01/18 Licensing - Statutory 
controls and 
byelaws 

 11/01/18 Ross Hill, Licensing Team 
Leader 
01442 228654 
Ross.hill@dacorum.gov.uk  
Mark Brookes, Solicitor to the 
Council 
01442 228236 
mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk 

To adopt revised 
statutory controls 
for the regulation 
of cosmetic body 
piercing, and to 
adopt new byelaws 
to govern the 
hygiene 
requirements for 
registered 
providers of 
tattooing, skin 
piercing, 
acupuncture and 
electrolysis. 

3.  30/01/18 Committee 
Timetable 2018/19 

 11/01/18 Mark Brookes, Solicitor to the 
Council 
01442 228236 
mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk 

To agree the 
committee 
timetable for 
2018/19 

4.  30/01/18 Management of 
Tring Swimming 
Pool 

 11/01/18 Robert Smyth, Assistant Director 
Performance & Projects, 01442 
228979 
robert.smyth@dacorum.gov.uk 

A review of 
operating 
responsibility in the 
delivery of leisure 
services at Tring 
School 

5.  30/01/18 Approval of 1 for 1 
grant allocation for 
Affordable Housing 

 11/01/18 Elliott Brooks, Assistant Director 
Housing 
01442 228615 
elliott.brooks@dacorum.gov.uk 
David Barrett, Group Manager 
Housing Development  
01442 228252 
david.barrett@dacorum.gov.uk  

To approve the 
award of various 
grants to RSL’s as 
a contribution 
through the 1 for 1 
scheme for 
delivery of 
affordable housing 
in the borough 

6.  13/02/18 Review of HRA 
Business Plan 

 25/01/18 Elliott Brooks, Assistant Director 
Housing 
01442 228615 
elliott.brooks@dacorum.gov.uk 

To approve the 
2018/19 Housing 
Revenue Account 
Business Plan 
 

7.  13/02/18 Budget Report  25/01/18 James Deane, Corporate 
Director Finance and Operations 
01442 228278 
James.deane@dacorum.gov.uk  

To recommend the 
2018/19 Budget 
 

8.  13/02/18
  

Public Space 
Protection Orders 

 25/01/18 Mark Brookes, Solicitor to the 
Council 
01442 228236 
mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk  

For the Council to 
consider the 
introduction of a 
PSPO for the town 
centre. 

9.  27/03/18 Two Waters Master 
Plan 

 08/03/18 James Doe, Assistant Director 
Planning, Development & 
Regeneration 
01442 228583 
James.doe@dacorum.gov.uk 
Chris Taylor, Group Manager 
Strategic Planning & 
Regeneration 01442 228405 
chris.taylor@dacorum.gov.uk 
Nathalie Bateman, Strategic 
Planning & Regeneration Team 
Leader 01442  228592 
nathalie.bateman@dacorum.gov
.uk 

To consider 
responses on the 
draft Masterplan 
issued for public 
consultation and 
confirmation of the 
final masterplan to 
be approved by 
Council 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6

mailto:James.deane@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.baker@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:Ross.hill@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:robert.smyth@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:elliott.brooks@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:david.barrett@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:elliott.brooks@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:James.deane@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:James.doe@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:chris.taylor@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:nathalie.bateman@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:nathalie.bateman@dacorum.gov.uk


 
09 January 2018 

 

 DATE 

MATTERS FOR 
CONSIDERATION 

 
Decision 
Making 
Process 

Reports to 
Monitoring 
Officer/S.15

1 Officer 

CONTACT DETAILS 
BACKGROUND 
INFORMATION 

10.  27/03/18 Senior Pay Policy  08/03/18 Robert Smyth, Assistant Director 
Performance & Projects, 01442 
228979 
robert.smyth@dacorum.gov.uk 
Matt Rawdon, Group Manager – 
People and Performance  

To be provided 

 

   Future Cabinet Dates 2018: 24 April, 22 May 

 
 Future Items: 
 

Enterprise and Investment Plan  
 Hemel Hempstead Town Centre Parking Access and Movement Strategy  
 Authority Management Report 

Dacorum Borough Local Plan 

Page 4

mailto:robert.smyth@dacorum.gov.uk


Report for: Cabinet 

Date of meeting: 17 January 2018 

Part: I 

If Part II, reason: 
The Procurement Report is a Part II document as the report 
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of the companies bidding for the contract, (Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Part 1, Paragraphs 3). 

 

Title of report: Construction of the Multi-Storey Car Park (MSCP) 
Berkhamsted – Award of Contract 

Contact: 
Graeme Elliot, Portfolio Holder for Finance & Resources 
James Deane, Corporate Director (Finance & Operations) 
 
Author/Responsible Officer 
Ben Hosier, Group Manager Commissioning, Procurement & 
Compliance 

Purpose of report: To seek Cabinet approval to approve the budget virement and 
award a contract for the construction of the MSCP in 
Berkhamsted.  

Recommendations 1. Approve the virement of £1.5m from the Strategic 
Acquisitions budget to the MSCP budget; and 

2. Approve the awarding of the contract to Huber Car Park 
Systems International GmbH for the construction of the 
MSCP. 

 
The Council has undertaken an OJEU compliant tender for the 

construction of a multi-storey car park (MSCP) in 

Berkhamsted. The Council received 3 tenders and, following a 

comprehensive evaluation process, the recommendation is to 

award the contract for the construction of the MSCP to Huber 

Car Park Systems International GmbH for £4,370,579. 

The construction was originally scheduled to commence in 

January 2018, with a start-on-site date of March 2018 and a 

build period of 8 months. This was a complex procurement 

process which was further protracted due to the requirement 

for a number of clarification meetings with bidders. As a result 

of this, Huber has confirmed that construction will now start on 

site in September/October 2018, with a projected completion 

date of June 2019. 

The currently approved budget for the project is £5.1m, 

comprising £3.6m in the MSCP capital budget and £1.5m in 

the Strategic Acquisitions budget (held separately in order to 

protect the Council’s commercial advantage when going out to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



tender on the contract).  

The tender was released to the market in the latter part of July 

2017 with a return date of the end of September 2017, with the 

evaluation to take place during October and the contract being 

awarded in November 2017. 

There were, however, a number of clarification questions 

posed to, and meetings held with bidders which consequently 

increased the evaluation process to 12 weeks from a 

scheduled 4 weeks. The need for this additional clarification 

process emerged during the procurement process, and was an 

essential part of the due diligence process to mitigate delivery 

risk to the Council. It related primarily to the bidders’ 

presentation of financial information, and to challenge their 

assumptions on design and construction method, and 

programme risk. 

Following these meetings with bidders, the final evaluation of 

bids was concluded in early December 2017. The delayed start 

to the project meant that Huber had to re-programme the 

delivery of the project to reflect changes to the availability of 

their resources. A start-on-site date of September/October 

2018 is the earliest available.  

Corporate 
Objectives: 

 Building strong and vibrant communities 
 

 Ensuring economic growth and prosperity 
 

 Delivering an efficient and modern council 

Implications: 
 
 
 
 
‘Value For Money 
Implications’ 

Financial 
 
The construction cost of Huber’s winning bid is £4.370m, and 

can be met from within the approved budget:   

Value for Money 

The tender has followed a comprehensive OJEU compliant 

procurement process and has been evaluated against design, 

quality and price which demonstrates value for money. 

Risk Implications 
The awarding of this contract has been carried out in full 
compliance with the Council’s procurement rules and as a 
consequence the risk of any challenge from an unsuccessful 
bidder is very low. 
 
With regards to the risks associated with the construction of 
the MSCP, these have been identified through the evaluation 
of the bids and will be managed throughout the duration of the 
contract by Huber and WYG who have been commissioned to 
deliver project management and contract administration on 
behalf of the Council. 

Page 6



Community Impact 
Assessment 

Community Impact Assessment has been reviewed and there 
has been no reason to amend it. 

Health And Safety 
Implications 

Health and Safety issues will be considered as part of the 
project risk assessment for delivering the project. 

Monitoring 
Officer/S.151 
Officer Comments 

Monitoring Officer:    
 

Under the Access to Information Regulations and the Council’s 
Constitution the Council is normally required to give 28 days’ 
notice where the Council intends to make a key decision.  The 
Regulations and the Constitution contain urgency provisions 
which can be used where a key decision is urgent.   
 
This can be done in two different ways. 

 The Council can take an urgent key decision without 

giving 28 days’ notice where it is impracticable to give 

the full notice, provided that the Council gives at least 

five days’ clear notice to all members of the relevant 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the authority (the 

“general exception” rule); or  

 

 where a key decision is so urgent there is not even time 

to give five clear days’ notice, the Council can take the 

decision if the Chairman of the relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee has agreed that the key decision is 

urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred (the “special 

urgency” rule).  

This notice requirement applies whether the key decision is to 

be taken by the Cabinet at a meeting, by the Executive Leader, 

another Cabinet Member or by an officer without a meeting 

taking place.  

The Council intends via this urgent Cabinet decision to make a 

decision to award the contract for the Berkhamsted Multi-

Storey Car Park.  

The approval of the contract award is urgent to enable the 

Council to award the contract and secure the contract price but 

also to secure the contractor to enable them to commit to 

delivering the contract within a reasonable timeframe; 

however, it is still possible to give 5 days’ notice to all members 

of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee (Finance and 

Resources) and therefore the “general exception” rule 

applies.  5 days’ notice has been given to all members of the 

Finance and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 

compliance with this rule. 

Page 7



Part 4- under “Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules”: 
“Call-in and Urgency” 

 
Call-in can be disapplied where the decision is urgent; the 
decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the 
call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the 
public’s interests. The decision is an urgent one and therefore 
should not be subject to call-in in order to enable the Council to 
award the contract and secure the contract price and the 
contractor for the works. In the absence of the Mayor (on 
leave), the deputy Mayor has agreed both that the decision 
proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and that it is to 
be treated as a matter of urgency.  
 

The matter, including the reasons for urgency, will be reported 

at the next available Council meeting. 

 
S.151 Officer 
 
This is a s151 Officer report. 
 

Consultees: 
Cabinet 
James Deane, Corporate Director (Finance & Operations) 
Nicholas Brown, Group Manager (Commercial Assets & 

Property Development) 
Ben Hosier, Group Manager (Commissioning, Procurement & 

Compliance) 

Background 
papers: 

Procurement report attached (Part II) 

Glossary of 
acronyms and any  
other abbreviations 
used in this report: 

N/A 

 

 

 

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	6 Cabinet Forward Plan
	7 Construction of the Multi-Storey Car Park (MSCP) Berkhamsted - Award of Contract
	Procurement Report - MSCP Berkhamsted (2)


